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To the Members of Ganga Care Hospital Limited 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

 

Opinion  

 

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ganga Care Hospital Limited 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive loss), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other 
explanatory information.  

 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March, 31, 2025, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit 
and other comprehensive loss), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
responsibilities 

for the audit of the financial statements
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Other Information 

4. 
the information included in the 
report thereon.  
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact.  
 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements 

5. The Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

6. In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 

 

 

 

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

 
8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.  
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on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

bility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.  

 

10. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  

11. 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B  a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.   

 

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books, except that the backup of certain books of accounts and 
other books and papers maintained in electric mode has not been maintained on daily basis on servers 
physically located in India during the year and the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive loss), the Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account.  
 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.  
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  
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(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made 
to our remarks in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi) 
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 

 

(h) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:   

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements  Refer Note 4.35 to the financial statements;  

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2025 under the applicable 
law or Indian Accounting Standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term 
contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025. 

 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025. 
 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
Note 4.37 (vii) (A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

      
(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 

Note 4.37 (vii) (B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
      

 (c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 
           

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.  

 
vi.   Based on our examination, the Company has used multiple accounting Softwares and is in the 

process of establishing necessary controls and maintaining documentation regarding audit trial. 
Consequently, we are unable to comment on the audit trail feature of the aforesaid softwares. 
Accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the audit trail had operated throughout the 
year or was tampered with or whether the audit trail of the prior year was preserved by the Company 
as per the statutory requirements for record retention does not arise. 
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13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.  

 

 
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 
 
 
 
 
Sudharmendra N 
Partner 
Membership Number: 223014 
UDIN: 25223014BMTDQV6628 
 
Hyderabad 
Date: July 30, 2025 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under 
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 
 
1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ganga Care 

Hospital Limited March, 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 
 

 
2. management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ( ICAI ). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act. 

 
Auditor s Responsibility 
 
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

 
4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
int  judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

 
5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

with reference to financial 
statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
 
6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
 
7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.  

 
Opinion 
 
8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system 

with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March, 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI. 

 
 
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP  
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Sudharmendra N 
Partner 
Membership Number: 223014 
UDIN: 25223014BMTDQV6628 
 
 
Hyderabad 
Date: July 30, 2025  
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books 
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, we report that: 
 
i.  (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets. 
 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a 
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  Pursuant to 
the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by 
the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such 
verification.  

   
(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 4.1 to the financial 

statements). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
 (d)  The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of 

Use assets) and Intangible Assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether 
the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of 
change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of 
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or Intangible Assets does not 
arise.   

 
(e)   No proceedings have been initiated on (or) are pending against the Company for holding benami 

property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) 
(formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made 
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has 
appropriately disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.  

  
ii.  (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 

Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification 
by Management is appropriate.  The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory 
as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.  

 
 (b)  During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 

crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question of our 
commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited 
books of account of the Company does not arise.   

 
iii.  The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in 

nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting 
under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b),(iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 
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iv.  The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or 

security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause 
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.   
 

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred 
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under. 

 
vi.       Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to 

maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its services. We 
have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts 
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.  

 
vii. (a) In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in 

respect of provident fund and income tax though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and 
 sales 

tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods and services tax and 
other statutory dues , as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. However, there are no 
arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. 

 
(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on 

account of any dispute.  

viii. There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961.  

 
ix.  (a)   As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the 

reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(b) We report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

 
(c)  The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of 

the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
(d)  On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not 

raised funds on short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.  
 

(e)  We report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies 
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
 

x.  (a)  The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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   (b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across 
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during 
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.   

     (b)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12) 
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under 
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

      (c)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by 
the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the 
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xii.       As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the 
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 

provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the 

 

xiv. (a) The internal audit of the Company is covered under the group internal audit pursuant to which 
internal audit system 

is commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

       (b)  The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us. 

xv.    In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of 
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

(b)  The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the 
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

(c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
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(d) In our opinion, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 

Directions, 2016) does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. Accordingly, the reporting 
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

xvii.  The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 
 

xviii.   There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the 
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is 
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based 
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
 

xx.  As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under 
Section 135(5) of the Act.  Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.  

 
xxi.  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone 

Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in 
this report. 
 
 

 
 
 
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016  
 
 
 
 
Sudharmendra N 
Partner 
Membership Number: 223014  
UDIN: 25223014BMTDQV6628 
 
 
Hyderabad 
Date: July 30, 2025         
 



Ganga Care Hospital Limited
Balance Sheet
(All amounts in  millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Notes
31 March 2025  31 March 2024 

ASSETS
A.    Non-current assets

(a)    Property, plant and equipment 4.1 113.15                         103.55                        
(b)    Right-of-use assets 4.2 56.67                           67.89                          
(c)    Intangible assets 4.3 0.75                             1.11                            
(d)    Financial assets
        (i)   Other financial assets 4.5 (a) 12.91                           85.71                          
(e)    Deferred tax assets (net) 4.6 12.17                           10.34                          
(f)    Non-current tax assets (net) 4.7 (a) 6.00                             -                                  
(g)    Other non-current assets 4.8 (a) 3.65                             5.64                            
Total non-current assets (A) 205.30                         274.24                        

B.    Current assets
(a)    Inventories 4.9 8.01                             8.11                            
(b)    Financial assets
       (i)     Investments 4.4 6.92                             6.42                            
       (ii)     Trade receivables 4.10 109.64                         94.42                          
       (iii)    Cash and cash equivalents 4.11 (a) 29.42                           59.48                          
       (iv)    Bank balances other than (iii) above 4.11 (b) 407.67                         276.17                        
       (v)     Loans 4.12 0.15                             0.15                            
       (vi)    Other financial assets 4.5 (b) 15.32 12.75
(c)    Other current assets 4.8 (b) 2.95                             1.89                            
Total current assets (B) 580.08                         459.39                        

Total assets (A+B) 785.38                         733.63                        

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

A.    Equity
(a)    Equity share capital 4.13 118.63                         118.63                        
(b)    Other equity
           Reserves and surplus 4.14 500.44                         441.57                        
Total equity (A) 619.07                         560.20                        

B.    Non-Current Liabilities
(a)    Financial liabilities
        (i)     Lease liabilities 4.29 71.89                           83.83                          
(b)    Non-current liabilities 4.18 2.74                             2.74                            
(c)    Employee benefit obligations 4.15 (a) 11.62                           10.03                          
Total non-current liabilities (B) 86.25                           96.60                          

C.    Current Liabilities
(a)    Financial liabilities
        (i)     Lease liabilities 4.29 11.94                           10.49                          
        (ii)   Trade payables

(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 4.16 (a) 6.04                             4.06                            
(b) total outstanding dues other than (ii) (a) above 4.16 (b) 33.91                           33.66                          

        (iii)    Other financial liabilities 4.17 8.98                             4.60                            
(b)    Employee benefit obligations 4.15 (b) 8.69                             7.61                            
(c)    Other current liabilities 4.19 10.50                           12.43                          
(d)    Provision for Income Tax (net)  4.7(b) -                                   3.98                            
Total current liabilities (C) 80.06                           76.83                          

Total liabilities (B+C) 166.31                         173.43                        

Total equity and liabilities (A+B+C) 785.38                         733.63                        

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

Particulars

Equity

Liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As at

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm's Registration No:  012754N/N500016

Sudharmendra N
Partner
Membership No.: 223014

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30 July, 2025  

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Ganga Care Hospital Limited
CIN: U85110MH2005PLC150811

Varun Khanna  Dr. Varun C. Bhargava
Director                                              Managing Director
DIN: 03584124 DIN: 00811414
Place: Hyderabad Place: Nagpur

Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran Vishal Maheshwari 
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No.: 41863 PAN: AAVPM0561F 

Place: Hyderabad                                                  Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30 July, 2025                                                Date: 30 July, 2025 



Ganga Care Hospital Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts in  millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Notes
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

I Revenue from operations 4.20 538.87                      526.54                   
II Other income 4.21 37.93                        29.40                     
III Total income (I+II) 576.80                      555.94                   

IV Expenses
(i)    Purchases of medical consumables and pharmacy items 118.74                      105.92                   
(ii)   Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items 4.22 (0.95)                        (1.44)                     
(iii)   Employee benefits expense 4.23 90.28                        83.24                     
(iv)   Other expenses 4.24 252.29                      220.89                   
Total expenses (IV) 460.36                      408.61                   

V Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (III-IV) 116.44                      147.33                   

(i)   Depreciation and amortisation expense 4.26 27.77                        26.71                     
(ii)  Finance costs 4.25 8.53                          9.44                       

VI Profit before tax 80.14                        111.18                   

VII Income Tax expense/(credit):
(i)   Current tax expense 4.27 21.97                        28.66                     
(ii)  Income tax relating to earlier periods 4.27 0.39                          (2.34)                     
(ii)  Deferred tax expense/(credit) 4.6 (1.64)                        (0.25)                     
Total tax expense 20.72                        26.07                     

VIII Profit for the year (VI-VII) 59.42                        85.11                     

IX Other comprehensive loss:
(i)     Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
        (a) Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations 4.31 (0.74)                        (0.78)                     
        (b) Income tax relating to these items 4.6 0.19                          0.20                       
Other Comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (IX) (0.55)                        (0.58)                     

X Total comprehensive income for the year (VIII+IX) 58.87                        84.53                     

4.28 5.01                          7.17                       
5.01                          7.17                       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

Particulars
For the year ended

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Ganga Care Hospital Limited
CIN: U85110MH2005PLC150811

Varun Khanna  Dr. Varun C. Bhargava
Director                                              Managing Director
DIN: 03584124 DIN: 00811414
Place: Hyderabad Place: Nagpur

Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran Vishal Maheshwari 
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.: 41863 PAN: AAVPM0561F 

Place: Hyderabad                                                  Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30 July, 2025                                                Date: 30 July, 2025 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm's Registration No:  012754N/N500016

Sudharmendra N
Partner
Membership No.: 223014

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30 July, 2025  



Ganga Care Hospital Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts in  millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 80.14                   111.18                   
Adjustments:

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (0.50)                    (0.44)                     
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27.77                   26.71                     
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 14.67                   -                         
Property, plant and equipment written off -                       (0.36)                     
Liabilities no longer required written back (6.12)                    (2.99)                     
Interest income (29.82)                  (25.33)                   
Finance costs 8.53                     9.44                       

94.67                       118.21                       

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 0.10                     (1.30)                     
(Increase) in trade receivables (23.77)                  (26.42)                   
(Increase) in loans -                       (0.09)                     
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (0.43)                    2.33                       
(Increase) in other financial assets (0.80)                    (0.67)                     
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 2.23                     (7.11)                     
Increase in provisions 1.93                     1.08                       
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 1.73                     (0.05)                     
(Decrease) in other liabilities (1.93)                    (1.36)                     

Cash generated from operations 73.73                       84.62                         
Income tax (paid)/refund, net (32.34)                  (11.47)                   

Net cash inflow from operating activities  (A) 41.39                       73.15                         

Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (21.78)                  (16.71)                   
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment -                       1.47                       
Sale of mutual funds -                       0.00                       
Interest received on fixed deposits 27.15                   20.46                     
Interest received on income tax refund -                       0.44                       
Investment in fixed deposit, net (57.80)                  (19.44)                   

Net cash outflow from investing activities (B) (52.43)                     (13.78)                       

Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid                     (8.53)                       (9.44)
Payment of lease liabilities                   (10.49)                       (8.70)

Net cash outflow from financing activities (C) (19.02)                     (18.14)                       

(30.06)                     41.23                         
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 59.48                       18.25                         

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 1) 29.42                       59.48                         

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 1:
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
  - Included in cash and cash equivalents (refer note 4.11(a))

Cash on hand 1.08                         0.54                           
Balances with banks in current accounts 28.34                       19.04                         

      Deposits with original maturity upto three months -                       39.90                     
Balances as per Statement of Cash Flows 29.42                       59.48                         

  This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

Particulars
For the year ended

 Change in operating assets and liabilities: 

 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents(A + B + C) 

For the year ended

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Ganga Care Hospital Limited
CIN: U85110MH2005PLC150811

Varun Khanna  Dr. Varun C. Bhargava
Director                                              Managing Director
DIN: 03584124 DIN: 00811414
Place: Hyderabad Place: Nagpur

Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran Vishal Maheshwari 
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No.: 41863 PAN: AAVPM0561F 

Place: Hyderabad                                                  Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30 July, 2025                                                Date: 30 July, 2025 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm's Registration No:  012754N/N500016

Sudharmendra N
Partner
Membership No.: 223014

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30 July, 2025  
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Ganga Care Hospital Limited

1. Company overview

2.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Defined benefit plan Fair value of present value of defined benefit obligations less fair value of plan assets

3

The material accounting policy information related to preparation of the financial statements have been discussed in the respective 
notes.

     - Contingencies

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:      

Below are the areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment
in the year ended 31 March 2025 is included in the following notes:

     - Useful lives of assets;

     - Expected credit loss and other disallowances on financial assets;
     - Lease liabilities;

     - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Functional and presentation currency
These financials statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the Company's functional currency. All
amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis for measurement

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates,
judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Application of accounting policies that require critical
accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgements and the use of assumptions in these financial statements
have been disclosed. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Ganga Care Hospital Limited (the or is headquartered in Nagpur, India and was incorporated on 25
January 2005 in accordance with the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The Company is primarily engaged in
providing healthcare and related services.

The Company has its registered office at #3, Farmland, Panchsheel Square, Wardha Road, Nagpur, Maharashtra - 440012.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with all material aspects with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 9 September 2024 and 28 September 2024 notified the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Third
Amendment Rules, 2024, respectively, which amended/ notified certain accounting standards (see below), and are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024:

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to 
significantly affect the current or future periods.
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Ganga Care Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements

4.3 Intangible assets
Amount

Gross carrying amount
1.13                                 
0.83                                 
1.96                                 

-                                        
1.96                                 

0.46                                 
0.39                                 
0.85                                 
0.36                                 
1.21                                 

1.11                                 
0.75                                 

4.4 Investments
As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024

 Current

6.85                                 6.36                             

0.07                                 0.06                             
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 6.92                                 6.42                             

4.5 Other financial assets 
As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024

(a) Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 9.06                                 8.75                             
Fixed deposits with banks with more than 12 months maturity* 2.65                                 76.35                           
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks 1.20                                 0.61                             
Total 12.91                               85.71                           

(b) Current
Unsecured, considered good
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks 14.30                               12.22                           
Others 1.02                                 0.53                             
Total 15.32                               12.75                           

* Includes an amount of 2.15 (31 March 2024: 1.55) held as margin money against bank guarantees.

Amortisation charge during the year
As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2025

Net carrying amount

Particulars

Particulars

(a) 176,889 (176,889 as at 31 March 2024) units in Bandhan Ultra Short Term Fund-Growth-(Direct Plan)

(b) 1,390 (1,390 as at 31 March 2024) units in Bandhan Super Saver Income Fund-Medium-Term Plan-Growth

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Amortisation charge during the year

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2025

Accumulated amortisation

As at 31 March 2023
Additions during the year

Additions during the year



Ganga Care Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements

4.6 Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars
Balance as at
 1 April 2024

Recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss during the 

year

Recognised in other 
comprehensive income 

during the year

 As at 
31 March 2025 

Deferred tax asset on
Expected credit loss and other disallowances 3.63                            0.36                                     -                                   3.99                             
Provision for employee benefits (including others) 4.89                            0.48                                     0.19                                 5.56                             
Expenses - deduction allowed on deduction of TDS 0.84                            0.69                                     -                                   1.53                             
Lease liability 23.74                          (2.64)                                    -                                   21.10                           
Total deferred tax asset 33.10                          (1.11)                                    0.19                                 32.18                           
Deferred tax liability on
Property, plant and equipment (5.67)                          (0.07)                                    -                                   (5.74)                            
Right-of-use assets (17.09)                        2.82                                     -                                   (14.27)                          
Total deferred tax liability (22.76)                        2.75                                     -                                   (20.01)                          
Deferred tax asset (net) 10.34                          1.64                                     0.19                                 12.17                           

Particulars
Balance as at
 1 April 2023

Recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss during the 

year

Recognised in other 
comprehensive income 

during the year

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Deferred tax asset on
Allowance for trade receivables 4.86                            (1.23)                                    -                                   3.63                             
Provision for employee benefits (including others) 4.42                            0.27                                     0.20                                 4.89                             
Expenses - deduction allowed on deduction of TDS 0.55                            0.29                                     -                                   0.84                             
Lease liability 26.00                          (2.26)                                    -                                   23.74                           
Total deferred tax asset 35.83                          (2.93)                                    0.20                                 33.10                           
Deferred tax liability on
Property, plant and equipment (6.03)                          0.36                                     -                                   (5.67)                            
Right-of-use assets (19.91)                        2.82                                     -                                   (17.09)                          
Total deferred tax liability (25.94)                        3.18                                     -                                   (22.76)                          
Deferred tax asset (net) 9.89                            0.25                                     0.20                                 10.34                           

4.7 (a)  Non-current tax assets (net)
As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024
Advance income tax (net of provision for taxation) 6.00                                 -                               
Total 6.00                                 -                               

 4.7(b) Provision for Income Tax (net)
As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024
Provision for Income tax, (net of advance income tax) -                                   3.98                             
Total -                                   3.98                             

4.8 Other assets 
As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024
(a) Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 1.68                                 3.04                             
Prepaid expenses 1.97                                 2.60                             
Total 3.65                                 5.64                             

(b) Current
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses 1.31                                 1.01                             
Advances to vendors 1.64                                 0.88                             
Total 2.95                                 1.89                             

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars



Ganga Care Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements

4.9 Inventories
Accounting policy

As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

Medical consumables and pharmacy items 7.28                 7.06                       
Other consumables 0.73                 1.05                       
Total 8.01                 8.11                       

4.10 Trade receivables 
Accounting policy

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024
118.66             105.12                   

6.86                 3.75                       
125.52             108.87                   

(15.88)             (14.45)                   
109.64             94.42                     

Trade receivables 102.98             90.77                     
Unbilled revenue 6.66                 3.65                       

As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

Opening balance at beginning of the year 14.45               18.00                     
Provision made during the year 32.15               (2.99)                     
Bad debts written off during the year (18.49)             (0.56)                     
Disallowances occurred during the year (12.23)             -                        
Closing balance at end of the year 15.88               14.45                     

Ageing of trade receivables and unbilled revenue as at 31 March 2025

Less than
6 months

6 months - 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
 More than

3 years 
 Total 

Undisputed trade receivables
6.87      37.33           46.40           19.30           15.00           0.62                  -   125.52             

3.06% 8.14% 9.12% 12.23% 36.13% 100.00%  -   12.65%

(0.21)     (3.04)            (4.23)            (2.36)            (5.42)            (0.62)                -   (15.88)             

6.66      34.29           42.17           16.94           9.58             -                   -   109.64             

Ageing of trade receivables and unbilled revenue as at 31 March 2024

Less than
6 months

6 months - 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
 More than

3 years 
 Total 

Undisputed trade receivables
3.75      29.69           71.48           3.85             0.01             -                  0.09                 108.87             

2.71% 10.56% 13.82% 32.08% 38.90% 0.00% 100.00% 13.27%

(0.10)     (3.14)            (9.88)            (1.24)            -               -                  (0.09)               (14.45)             

3.65      26.55           61.60           2.61             0.01             -                  -                  94.42               

Outstanding for following periods from the due date
Particulars Unbilled Not due

    -Considered good

Inventory of medical supplies, drugs and other consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of medical supplies, drugs and other consumables
is determined on the basis of Weighted Average Method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables are amounts due from the customers for goods sold and services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflect the Company's
unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time).

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components.
The Company follows for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component.

*The movement in the expected credit loss and other disallowances on trade receivables for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 is as follows:

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
expected credit loss (ECLs) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for these assets, the
Company has used a practical expedient method as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which
takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Particulars

Total  
Less: Expected credit loss and other disallowances*
Total trade receivables and unbilled revenue

Particulars Unbilled Not due

    -Considered good
   -Expected credit loss and 
other disallowances rate
   -Expected credit loss and 
other disallowances
Total

   -Expected credit loss and 
other disallowances rate
   -Expected credit loss and 
other disallowances

Total

Outstanding for following periods from the due date



Ganga Care Hospital Limited
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4.11 Cash and bank balances
As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024

a) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
   -in current accounts 28.34               19.04                     
Cash on hand 1.08                 0.54                       
Deposits with original maturity upto three months -                  39.90                     

29.42               59.48                     
b) Other bank balances
Deposits with maturity of less than twelve months from the reporting date 407.60             275.80                   
Unpaid dividend account 0.07                 0.07                       
Others* -                  0.30                       

407.67             276.17                   
Total 437.09             335.65                   

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and previous period.
* Includes margin money held against bank guarantees of nil (31 March 2024: 0.3).

4.12 Loans 
Particulars As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024

Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to employees 0.15                 0.15                       
Total 0.15                 0.15                       

Particulars
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4.15 Employee benefit obligations
As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024
(a) Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 4.31) 9.89                  8.49                       
Compensated absences 1.73                  1.54                       
Total 11.62                10.03                     

(b) Current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 4.31) 7.20                  6.26                       
Compensated absences 1.49 1.35                       
Total 8.69                  7.61                       

4.16 Trade payables

As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

(a) Trade payable : Micro and small enterprises; 6.04                  4.06                       
(b) Trade payable : others 33.91                33.66                     
Total 39.95                37.72                     

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises are as follows
Particulars  As at 

31 March 2025 
 As at 

31 March 2024 

6.04                  4.06                       

-                    -                        
-                    -                        

-                    -                        

-                    -                        

-                    -                        

The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payable is disclosed in Note 4.33.

Less than 1
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3

years
Total

                       -                       6.04                        -                          -                          -                            -                             6.04 

                  26.70                     3.92                     3.16                        -                       0.06                      0.07                         33.91 

                  26.70                     9.96                     3.16                        -                       0.06                      0.07                         39.95 

Less than 1
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3

years
Total

                       -                       4.06                        -                          -                          -                            -                             4.06 

                  16.71                   16.41                     0.38                     0.09                     0.02                      0.05                         33.66 

                  16.71                   20.47                     0.38                     0.09                     0.02                      0.05                         37.72 

4.17 Other financial liabilities
As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024
Capital creditors 5.24                  2.59                       
Employee benefit payables 2.54                  2.01                       
Other payables 1.20                  -                        
Total 8.98                  4.60                       

4.18 Other non-current liabilities

As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

Others - retention money deposit 2.74                  2.74                       
Total 2.74                  2.74                       

4.19 Other current liabilities
As at 

31 March 2025
As at 

31 March 2024

Statutory dues 2.84                  3.57                       
Interim dividend payable 0.07                  0.07                       
Unearned revenue 7.59                  8.79                       
Total 10.50                12.43                     

Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Others

Total

Ageing of trade payables as at 31 March 2025:

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year;
ii) The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed date during
the accounting year;
iii) The amount of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006;

vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purposes of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the section 23 of
the MSMED Act, 2006.

v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

Explanation - The terms 'appointed day', 'buyer', 'enterprise', 'micro enterprise', ' small enterprise' and 'supplier', shall have the same meaning assigned to them under clauses
(b), (d), (e), (h), (m) and (n) respectively of section 2 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Company.

Unbilled
Not
due

Particulars

Undisputed trade payables

Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Particulars

Particulars

Micro enterprises and small enterprises
Others

Total

Ageing of trade payables as at 31 March 2024:

Particulars Unbilled
Not
due

Undisputed trade payables

Micro enterprises and small enterprises
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4.20 Revenue from operations
Accounting policy:

For the year ended
 31 March 2025

For the year ended
 31 March 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers
   Revenue from healthcare services 500.71                    494.98                         
   Revenue from outpatient pharmacy 37.67                      31.23                           

Other operating income 0.49                        0.33                             
Total 538.87                    526.54                         

Revenue disaggregation geography wise is as follows:
For the year ended

 31 March 2025
For the year ended

 31 March 2024
India 538.87                    526.54                         

538.87                    526.54                         

Reconciliation of contract price to revenue recognised from healthcare services is as follows:
For the year ended

 31 March 2025
For the year ended

 31 March 2024
Revenue from healthcare services, gross 518.19                    500.57                         
Less: disallowances (17.48)                    (5.59)                            
Revenue from healthcare services 500.71                    494.98                         

4.21 Other income
Accounting policy:
Interest income on financial assets is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). 

For the year ended
 31 March 2025

For the year ended
 31 March 2024

(a) Interest income 
on financial assets ( bank deposits ) measured at amortised cost 29.82                      24.89                           
on income tax refund -                         0.44                             

(b) Other non-operating income
Net gain arising on mutual funds designated at FVTPL 0.50                        0.44                             
Profit on sale of asset -                         0.36                             
Liabilities no longer required written back 6.12                        2.99                             
Miscellaneous income 1.49                        0.28                             
Total 37.93                      29.40                           

4.22 Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items
For the year ended

 31 March 2025
For the year ended

 31 March 2024

Inventory at the beginning of the year (a) 7.06                        5.62                             
Inventory at the end of the year (b) 8.01                        7.06                             
Total ( (a) - (b) ) (0.95)                      (1.44)                            

4.23 Employee benefits expense
For the year ended

 31 March 2025
For the year ended

 31 March 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 79.92                      74.35                           
Contributions to provident fund 5.53                        5.14                             
Gratuity and compensated absences 3.50                        2.67                             
Staff welfare expenses 1.33                        1.08                             
Total 90.28                      83.24                           

Revenue from health care services and related activities
Income from healthcare services is recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered unless significant future uncertainties exists.
Revenue is also recognised in relation to the services rendered, to the patients who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date
to the extent of services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts and concessions, if any, given to the patients and disallowances.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy
Revenue from sale of pharmacy is recognised when control is transferred to the customer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount
of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection.

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

There are no disallowances in 'Revenue from outpatient pharmacy' and 'Other operating income' during the current year and previous year.
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4.24 Other expenses
For the year ended

 31 March 2025
For the year ended

 31 March 2024

Power and fuel 14.65                        12.80                          
Rent 1.22                          1.06                            
Repairs and maintenance
   - Buildings 1.02                          1.14                            
   - Plant and machinery and others 20.21                        17.70                          
Hospital maintenance 4.45                          4.57                            
Housekeeping charges 22.50                        19.93                          
Security charges 0.99                          0.96                            
Insurance 0.01                          0.10                            
Water charges 1.30                          1.18                            
Books and periodicals 0.07                          0.10                            
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 3.66                          10.34                          
Travelling and conveyance 0.62                          1.02                            
Communication expense 1.48                          1.40                            
Marketing and business promotion expense 15.40                        9.18                            
Expected credit loss 14.67                        -                             
Printing and stationery 3.00                          2.35                            
Payments to the auditor (refer note (a)) 0.55                          0.55                            
Legal and professional charges 3.55                          4.86                            
Catering charges, net 3.93                          3.49                            
Diagnostics expenses 21.69                        15.73                          
Contribution towards Corporate social responsibility (refer note (b)) 1.29                          -                             
Professional charges to doctors 115.47                      111.65                        
Bank charges 0.55                          0.77                            
Miscellaneous expenditure 0.01                          0.01                            
Total 252.29                      220.89                        

Note (a): Payments to the auditor

Particulars
 For the year ended

 31 March 2025 
 For the year ended

 31 March 2024 
For statutory audit 0.55                          0.55                            

0.55                          0.55                            

Note (b): Corporate social responsibility ( CSR )
 For the year ended

 31 March 2025 
 For the year ended

 31 March 2024 

1.00                          -                             

0.29                          -                             
Total 1.29                          -                             

Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects
Amount deposited in

specified fund of
Schedule VII of the Act

within 6 months

Amount
required to be
spent during

the year

Amount
spent during

the year

Balance as at 31 
March 2025

Nil 1.29                                 1.29                          Nil

Amount deposited in
specified fund of

Schedule VII of the Act
within 6 months

Amount
required to be
spent during

the year

Amount
spent during

the year

Balance as at 31 
March 2024

Nil Nil Nil Nil

4.25 Finance costs
For the year ended

 31 March 2025
For the year ended

 31 March 2024

Interest on lease liabilities 8.53                          9.44                            
Total 8.53                          9.44                            

4.26 Depreciation and amortisation expense
For the year ended

 31 March 2025
For the year ended

 31 March 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 16.19                        15.10                          
Amortisation on other intangible assets 0.36                          0.39                            
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 11.22                        11.22                          
Total 27.77                        26.71                          

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Contribution to NATHealth - towards digital health training program

Particulars

Balance as at 1 April 2024

Nil

Balance as at 1 April 2023

Nil

Contribution to Jagathi Foundation - towards menstrual hygiene and breast cancer awareness
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4.27  Income tax expense/ (credit)

Particulars
 For the year ended

 31 March 2025 
 For the year ended

 31 March 2024 
Income tax expense/(credit) reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Tax expense comprises of:
Current tax expense 21.97                         28.66                               
Income tax relating to earlier periods 0.39                            (2.34)                               
Deferred tax expense/(credit) (1.64)                          (0.25)                               

20.72                         26.07                               

Reconciliation of tax expense/ (credit) and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Particulars
 For the year ended

 31 March 2025 
 For the year ended

 31 March 2024 
Profit before tax 80.14                         111.18                             
Tax at the Indian tax rate 25.17% (31 March 2024: 25.17%) 20.17                         27.98                               
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Income tax pertaining to earlier periods 0.39                            (2.34)                               

Non-deductible expenses and others adjustments 0.16                            0.43                                 

Tax expense 20.72                         26.07                               

4.28  Earnings per equity share (EPES)
Particulars  For the year ended

 31 March 2025 
 For the year ended

 31 March 2024 
59.42                         85.11                               

Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 11,862,500                11,862,500                     
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 11,862,500                11,862,500                     

Weighted average number of equity shares considered in computation of Basic EPES 11,862,500                11,862,500                     
Weighted average number of equity shares considered in computation of Dilutive EPES 11,862,500                11,862,500                     

5.01                            7.17                                 
5.01                            7.17                                 

Profit for the year
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4.29 Leases

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025
For the year ended

31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 94.32                               103.02                                
Interest on lease liability 8.53                                 9.44                                   
Payment (19.02)                             (18.14)                                
Balance at the end of the year                                83.83                                   94.32 
Current 11.94                               10.49                                 
Non Current 71.89                               83.83                                  

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9.55%.

The Following are the amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025
For the year ended

31 March 2024
Depreciation of Right to use assets 11.22                               11.22                                 
Interest expenses on lease liabilities                                  8.53                                     9.44 
Expenses related to short term lease (included under other expenses) 1.22                                 1.06                                   
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss                                20.97                                   21.72 

 As at 31 March 2025  As at 31 March 2024 
Less than 1 year                                19.30                                   19.01 
1 - 5 years                                81.54                                   82.39 
More than 5 years                                  5.91                                   24.35 

4.30 Segment Information

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease
payments.

Carrying amount of lease liabilities and movement during the year

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Company's lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Ind AS 108 AS establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about

operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the

as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM evaluates the performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The

sole operating segment is therefore and Healthcare Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided

under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the financial statements.

Further, the business operations of the Company are concentrated in India, and hence, the Company is considered to operate only in one
geographical segment.

Right-of-use assets are measured at the amount comprising of the initial measurement of lease liability and any lease payments made at or before 
the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life 
and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The Company has taken office, hospital building and furniture on operating lease having a term ranging from 1 years to 6 years. The lease has an 

assets. 
The Company also has certain lease of building with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the 'short term lease' recognition 
exemption for these leases.
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4.31

Defined benefit plan

A

Particulars
 As at

31 March 2025 
 As at

31 March 2024 
Defined benefit obligations 18.26                               15.58                         
Fair value of plan assets 1.17                                 0.83                           
Net defined benefit liability 17.09                               14.75                         
Total employee benefit liability 17.09                               14.75                         
Non-current 9.89                                 8.49                           
Current 7.20                                 6.26                           

B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation

i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars
 As at

31 March 2025 
 As at

31 March 2024 
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 15.58                               13.34                         
Benefit payments from plan assets (0.84)                                (0.97)                          
Current service cost 1.78                                 1.59                           
Interest expense 1.09                                 0.96                           
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in other comprehensive income
-   changes in financial assumptions 0.09                                 0.09                           
-   experience adjustments 0.56                                 0.57                           
Defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date 18.26                               15.58                         

ii) Reconciliation to fair value of plan assets

Particulars
 As at

31 March 2025 
 As at

31 March 2024 
Plan assets at beginning of the year 0.83                                 0.29                           
Contributions paid 1.20                                 1.59                           
Interest income 0.07                                 0.04                           
Benefits paid (0.84)                                (0.97)                          
Remeasurement - return on assets (excluding interest income) (0.09)                                (0.12)                          
Plan assets at end of the year 1.17                                 0.83                           

C (i) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars
 As at

31 March 2025 
 As at

31 March 2024 
Current service cost 1.78                                 1.59                           
Interest on net defined liability/ (asset) 1.02                                 0.92                           
Net cost, included in 'employee benefits' 2.80                                 2.51                           

   (ii) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025
For the year ended

31 March 2024
Actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation 0.65                                 0.66                           
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 0.09                                 0.12                           
Closing amount recognised in OCI 0.74                                 0.78                           

Employee benefits

The Company operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provide gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five
years of continuous services, to receive one-half month's last drawn salary for each year of completed services at the time of retirement/exit. The scheme is
managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company's obligation in respect of gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan is provided for based
on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognises actuarial gains and loss
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act,1972 as applicable as
at the balance sheet date.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in
the Company's financial statements as at the balance sheet date:

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit obligation and its components.
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D Plan assets
Plan assets comprises of the following:

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 
 As at 

31 March 2024 
Fund managed by Insurer 1.17                                 0.83                           

E Other disclosures
i) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Principal actuarial assumptions
 As at 

31 March 2025 
 As at 

31 March 2024 
Attrition rate 40.00% 40.00%
Discount rate 6.96% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
1st following year 7.25                                 6.31                           
Year 2 to 5 11.05                               9.31                           
Year 6 to 9 2.59                                 2.27                           
Year 10 0.21                                 0.19                           

Notes:

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025
For the year ended

31 March 2024

Salary escalation (+ 1% movement) 0.44                                 0.37                           
Salary escalation (- 1% movement) (0.42)                                (0.36)                          
Discount rate      (+ 1% movement) (0.02)                                (0.29)                          
Discount rate      (- 1% movement) 0.40                                 0.30                           

F Defined contribution plan

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025
For the year ended

31 March 2024

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss towards
Provident fund 5.53                                 5.14                           

b) Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary escalation rate and withdrawal rate. The 

sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting

period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The contribution towards its provident fund is a defined contribution retirement plan for qualifying employees. The contribution to
the Employees Provident Fund is deposited with Provident Fund Commissioner which is recognised by the Income Tax authorities. Details for the
expenditure recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is as below:

a) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such
as supply and demand in the employment market. The Company evaluates these assumptions annually based on the long-term plans of growth and
industrials standards.
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4.32 Related party disclosures

Names
Ultimate Holding Company
Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company Quality Care India Limited

Mr. Vishal Maheshwari (w.e,f 6th Dec 2024)
Ms. Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran
Dr. Neha Bhargava
Mr. Vijay Bhargava
Dr. Alka Bhargava

(b) The schedule of related party transactions are as follows:

Transaction details
 For the year ended

31 March 2025 
 For the year ended

31 March 2024 
Transactions during the year

1. Dr. Varun C. Bhargava
Remuneration * 2.43                             2.27                           
Professional fees 1.57                             1.50                           

2. Dr. Alka Bhargava
Professional fees 0.63                             0.70                           

3 Dr. Neha Bhargava
Professional fees 2.19                             2.06                           

4. Mr. Vijay Bhargava
Rent 0.29                             0.28                           

 As at 
31 March 2025 

 As at 
31 March 2024 

Balances 
Dr. Varun C. Bhargava (0.34)                            (0.13)                          
Dr. Neha Bhargava (0.18)                            (0.20)                          
Dr. Alka Bhargava (0.11)                            (0.05)                          

(a) Parties where control exists or where significant influence exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the

current year or  previous year

Nature of relationship
BCP Asia II Holdco IV Pte. Ltd (w.e.f. 27 October 2023)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Dr. Varun C. Bhargava

TPG Capital, L.P. (till 26 October 2023)

(c) Balances receivable/(payable)

Particulars

*Does not include post employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits expenditure which are computed for the Company as a

whole.

Relatives of KMP
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4.33 (a) Capital management

The aforesaid ratio is not applicable as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 as the Company does not have debt.

(b) Categories of financial instruments

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Financial assets
Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments - current 6.92                          6.42                               
Measured at amortised cost
Other financial assets - non-current 12.91                        85.71                             
Trade receivables- current 109.64                      94.42                             
Cash and cash equivalents 29.42                        59.48                             
Bank balances other than above 407.67                      276.17                           
Other financial assets- current 15.32                        12.75                             
Loans 0.15                          0.15                               
Total 582.03                      535.10                           

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Trade payables 39.95                        37.72                             
Lease liabilities - non-current 71.89                        83.83                             
Lease liabilities- current 11.94                        10.49                             
Other financial liabilities- current 8.98                          4.60                               
Total 132.76                      136.64                           

c) Financial risk management

i) Risk management framework

ii) Credit Risk

The risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined
and constructive control environment in which all the employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders.

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are reasonable approximation
of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would
eventually be received or settled. At the end of the reporting periods, there are no significant concentrations of financial instruments designated at
FVTPL.

The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.
The Board of Directors are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss.
The credit risk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with
banks and other financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based
on the past and the recent collection trend. 

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection
from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team. The company takes due care while extending any credit.
Refer note 4.10 for further details.
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Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

iii) Liquidity risk

Particulars
Less than 

1 year
1-5 years More than 5 years Total

Trade payables 15.32      -                          -                            15.32                             
Lease liabilities 19.30      81.54                       5.91                          106.75                           
Other financial liabilities 8.98        -                          -                            8.98                               
Total 43.60      81.54                       5.91                          131.05                           

Particulars
Less than 

1 year
1-5 years More than 5 years Total

Trade payables 37.72      -                          -                            37.72                             
Lease liabilities 19.01      82.39                       24.35                        125.75                           
Other financial liabilities 4.60        -                          -                            4.60                               
Total 61.33      82.39                       24.35                        168.07                           

iv) Market risk

v) Interest rate risk exposure

Particulars
 For the year ended

31 March 2025 
 For the year ended

31 March 2024 
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets

Fixed deposits 410.25                      392.35                           
410.25                      392.35                           

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets - investment in mutual funds 6.92                          6.42                               

6.92                          6.42                               

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. There is no significant concentration of
credit risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. The approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Considering the nature of the Company's financial instruments, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company's investments in deposits and mutual funds are with banks and reputed financial institutions and therefore do not expose the
Company to significant interest rates risk.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2025:

None of the Company's cash equivalents, including fixed deposits, were either past due or impaired as at 31 March 2025. Credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents, including fixed deposits is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Ind AS requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether a
financial asset or a group of financial assets are impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the life time expected credit
losses. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision
matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. 

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2024:
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4.34 Fair value measurement

i)

As at                    
31 March 2025

As at                    
31 March 2024

Financial assets

Investment in mutual funds Level 1 6.92                          6.42                               

There was no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 in the period.
The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company, except for 'investment in mutual funds' is level 3.

ii) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

4.35 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Accounting policy

Contingent liabilities

Particulars
As at                    

31 March 2025
As at                    

31 March 2024
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
Patient claims                         12.54                              12.54 

Capital commitments

Particulars
As at                    

31 March 2025
As at                    

31 March 2024
1.83                                 2.28 

4.36 Unearned revenue

The following table discloses the movement in the unearned revenue
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2025
For the year ended 

31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 8.79                          10.51                             
Add : Additions during the year 7.59                          8.79                               
Less : Invoiced during the year (8.79)                        (10.51)                           
Balance at the end of the year 7.59                          8.79                               

Estimated amount of contracts remaning to be executed on capital account and not provided
for (Net of Advances)

In respect of above matter, future cash outflows in respect of contingent liabilities are determinable only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 

Particulars
Valuation technique and key 
input

Fair value 
hierarchy

Based on the net asset value

as stated by the issuers

of these mutual fund units in the

published statements as at

balance sheet date. (quoted

prices in active market)

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values
that would eventually be received or settled.

 Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: 
-      a present obligation arising from  past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
-      a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate possible;
-      a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Significant Estimate : Management uses single most likely outcome for estimating the financial impact from litigations. Based on judicial 
pronouncements in similar cases or from opinions obtained from internal/ external legal counsel, management arrives at the possible outcome of the 
litigation.
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4.37   Regulatory information 

(i) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company does not has any loan from banks which are secured by the hypothecation of current asset/immovable property.

(iii) Wilful defaulter
The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company doesn't has any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, reporting on compliance with number of layers
of company is not applicable.

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial
year.

(vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
(A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(B) The company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:
a.directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b.provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(viii) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(ix) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(x) Valuation of Property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment property
The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the current or previous year.
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4.38   Financial ratios

S.No. Particulars Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Variance %
Reason if variance is more than 

25%
1 Current ratio

Numerator - Current assets 580.08            459.39        
Denominator - Current liabilities 80.06              76.83          

2 Debt service coverage ratio
Numerator - PAT + Depreciation and amortisations + Interest 
+ Loss on property, plant and equipment + Provision for 
doubtful balances

110.39            121.26        

Denominator - Interest & lease payments + principal 
repayments

19.02              18.14          

3 Return on equity ratio (in %)

Numerator - Profit after tax 59.42              85.11          

Denominator - Average shareholders equity 589.64            517.94        

4 Inventory turnover ratio (in times)
Numerator - Cost of goods sold 117.79            104.48        
Denominator - Average Inventory 8.06                7.46            

5 Trade receivables turnover ratio (in times)
Numerator - Net credit sales 302.73 315.08        
Denominator - Average trade receivables 102.03            79.72          

6 Trade payables turnover ratio (in times)

Numerator - Net credit purchases 239.03            214.28        

Denominator - Average trade payables 38.84              41.28          

7 Net capital turnover ratio (in times)

Numerator - Revenue from operations 538.87            526.54        

Denominator - Average working capital 441.29            371.03        

8 Net profit ratio (in %)

Numerator - Profit for the year 59.42              85.11          

Denominator - Revenue from operations 538.87            526.54        

9 Return on capital employed (in %)

Numerator - Profit before tax and finance costs 88.67              120.62        

Denominator - Capital employed= Tangible networth + Total 
debt + Deferred tax liability

618.32            559.09        

10 Return on investment (in %)

Numerator - Earnings before interest and taxes 88.67              120.62        

Denominator - Average total assets 759.51            697.10        

17.30             

3.95              

5.19              

1.42              

16.16

21.57

 For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

5.98              None

None

21%

-13%

None4%

The change in ratio when compared
to previous year is mainly on account
of decrease in Profit after tax and
increase in average equity on account
of current year profits.

-39%

None19%

None-25%

The change in ratio when compared
to previous year is mainly on account
of decrease in Profit after tax.

-32%

None-14%

The change in ratio when compared
to previous year is mainly on account
of decrease in earnings before
interest and taxes and increase in
average total assets.

-33%

The change in ratio when compared
to previous year is mainly on account
of decrease in Profit after tax and
increase in capital employed on
account of current year profits.

-34%

 For the year ended 
31 March 2025 

7.25            

5.80            

10.08

6.68              

16.43

14.01             

14.34

11.67          

14.61          

2.97            

6.16            

1.22            

11.03
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4.39   Summary of other accounting policies

Assets:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a. Recognition and initial measurement
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not recorded at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

C) Financial instruments

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets/ liabilities respectively. 

B) Measurement of fair values

c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or
d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities:
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

This note provides a list of other accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements to the extent they have not already
been disclosed in the other notes. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
A) Current and non-current classification
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in
the Schedule III to the Act.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of
a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
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A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents
unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature
that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair
value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time 
and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the company considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the company considers: 

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are
managed;

how managers of the business are compensated e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and 

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales
activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if assets are held for collection of contractual cash flows 
and for selling the financials assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative 
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise. 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best
reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to the management. The information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- amortised cost; or
- fair value through profit or loss (either through other comprehensive income or through profit or loss). The classification depends upon the entity's
business model for managing financial instruments and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL.

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

b. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
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Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at
amortised cost

c. Derecognition 

Financial assets

Financial liabilities 

d. Offsetting 

Recognition:

Measurement:

E) Cash flow statement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sale
the financial asset.

Investments in mutual funds are recognized and subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of investment
in mutual funds are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss.

D) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months or less which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control
of the financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

e. Recognition and measurement of mutual funds

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value (either through profit or loss or other comprehensive income). 
Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is 
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in 
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and

net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
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F) Revenue recognition

Other operating income

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss account.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are derecognised from the financial statements upon sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant 

G) Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition and measurement 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives then they are accounted as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the performance
obligation is satisfied.

Goods and services tax is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected by the Company on behalf of the
Government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Unbilled receivables and Unearned revenue
Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled
receivables when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms. Other contract assets
have been disclosed as contract assets within other assets.

Unearned revenue is recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues. The billing schedules agreed with customers
could include periodic performance-based payments and/or milestone-based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed
credit period. Advances received for services are reported as liabilities until all conditions for revenue recognition are met.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

 enhanced; or
(iii) the performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Other operating revenue comprises revenue from various ancillary revenue generating activities such as clinical research, income from outsourced 
facilities and academic/training services. The revenue in respect of such arrangements is recognized as and when services are performed.

Revenue primarily comprises fees charged under contract for inpatient and/or outpatient hospital services and includes sale of medical and non-
medical items. Hospital services include charges for accommodation, medical professional services, equipment, radiology, laboratory,
pharmaceutical goods among others, used in treatments provided to the patients.
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H) Employee benefits

Compensated absences

I) Borrowing cost

J) Leases

As a lessee

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods or receive cash
compensation on termination of employment. Considering the industry the company operates and requires employees to be available for emergency
services, management has made an estimate of leaves availment by its employees to classify the benefit as short term or long term. The obligation
is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition
or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. 

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases
in the Company, the incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund
to Government administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a
defined benefit plan. The net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of
defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is managed by third party administrators.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) are
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service service or
service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the

settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 

Short-term employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans
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L) Income tax

Current tax 

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax assets unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/
no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

K) Earnings per equity share (EPES)
The basic earnings/(loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders for the period by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
The Company does not have potential dilutive equity shares outstanding during the reporting period.

where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Company, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the Company use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Company is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease
liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:
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M) Impairment

Write-off

O) Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable than an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. when the company expects some or all of the provisions to be reimbursed, the expenses relating to the provisions is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of the money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow
of resources. When there is a possible or present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

P) Measurement of Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/loss from operations. In its measurement of EBITDA, the
Company includes other income but des not include depreciation and amortization expenses, finance cost and tax expense.

b. Impairment of non-financial assets
The non-financial assets, inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are companied together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest company of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

N) Provisions

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables, unbilled
receivables and bank balances.

Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet.
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Company determines that the trade receivable or the financial assets does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost; 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is
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4.40 Other regulatory information

(iii) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The company has not obtained borrowings from banks and financial institutions.

(i) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company
The company doesn't own any immovable properties.

(ii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Company:
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
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